
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

CS/NG

Dydd Iau, 9 Ionawr 2025

Ceri Shotton
ceri.shotton@siryfflint.gov.uk

At: Cyng Richard Lloyd (Cadeirydd)

Cynghorwyr: Mike Allport, Bernie Attridge, 
Sean Bibby, Chris Bithell, Paul Cunningham, 
Adele Davies-Cooke, Chris Dolphin, 
Carol Ellis, Gladys Healey, Paul Johnson, 
Allan Marshall, Hilary McGuill, Ted Palmer, 
Mike Peers a David Richardson

Annwyl Syr / Fadam

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD HYBRID
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO

DYDD MERCHER, 15FED IONAWR, 2025 am 2.00 PM

Yn gywir

Steven Goodrum
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Sylwch: Gellir mynychu’r cyfarfod hwn naill ai wyneb yn wyneb yn Siambr Cyngor yr 
Arglwydd Barry Jones, Cyngor Sir y Fflint, Yr Wyddgrug, Sir y Fflint neu ar-lein.

Gofynnwyd i siaradwyr cyhoeddus a hoffent gyfarch y Pwyllgor yn Gymraeg neu 
Saesneg.  

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd y ffrydio byw yn dod i 
ben pan fydd unrhyw eitemau cyfrinachol yn cael eu hystyried.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’r Tîm Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

mailto:ceri.shotton@siryfflint.gov.uk
https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD 

3 SYLWADAU HWYR 

4 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 6)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 18 Rhagfyr 

2024.

5 EITEMAU I'W GOHIRIO 

6 MAE ADRODDIAD Y PRIF SWYDDOG (CYNLLUNIO, AMGYLCHEDD AC 
ECONOMI) 
Pwrpas: Mae adroddiad y Prif Swyddog (Cynllunio, Amgylchedd ac 

Economi) yn amgaeedig.

ADRODDIAD Y PRIF SWYDDOG (CYNLLUNIO, AMGYLCHEDD AC ECONOMI) 
AR GYFER Y PYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 15 IONAWR 2025

Rhif yr 
eitem

Cyfeirnod y Ffeil DISGRIFIAD

Ceisiadau sy'n cael eu hadrodd er penderfyniad (C = Cymeradwyaeth, G = Gwrthod)
6.1  COU/000183/24 - C Cais llawn - Cynnig i ad-drefnu safle carafanau preswyl presennol i 

ganiatáu ar gyfer lleoli 26 uned ar dir ger Old Quay House, Ffordd 
y Doc, Cei Connah (Tudalennau 7 - 22)

Sylwch y gall fod 10 munud o egwyl yn y cyfarfod hwn os yw’n para fwy na 
dwy awr



PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 DECEMBER 2024

Minutes of the Planning Committee of Flintshire County Council held as a hybrid 
meeting on Wednesday, 18 December 2024

PRESENT: Councillor Richard Lloyd (Chair)
Councillors: Mike Allport, Sean Bibby, Chris Bithell, Paul Cunningham, Adele Davies-
Cooke, Chris Dolphin, Paul Johnson, Alan Marshall, Hilary McGuill, Ted Palmer and 
Mike Peers

APOLOGIES: Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Carol Ellis and Gladys Healey

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Steve Copple attended as Local Member for agenda 
item 6.2 (FUL/000581/24)

IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Officer (Planning, Environment & Economy), Service 
Manager - Strategy, Service Manager - Development, Senior Engineer - Highways 
Development Control, Senior Planning Officer, Solicitor, Overview & Scrutiny 
Facilitator and Democratic Services Officer

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Link to recording)

Councillors Ted Palmer and Paul Johnson declared a personal interest on agenda 
item 6.1 (FUL/000726/24) as both are members of Holywell Town Council.

34. LATE OBSERVATIONS

The Chairman allowed Members an opportunity to read the late observations which 
had been circulated prior to the meeting and were appended to the agenda item on 
the Council’s website:

https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&MId=57
85&LLL=0

35. MINUTES (Link to recording)

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2024 were confirmed as a correct 
record.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a true and correct record.

36. ITEMS TO BE DEFERRED

None of the items were recommended for deferral.

Tudalen 3

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4

https://flintshire.public-i.tv/site/mg_bounce.php?mg_a_id=30822&mg_m_id=5785&language=en_GB
https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&MId=5785&LLL=0
https://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=490&MId=5785&LLL=0
https://flintshire.public-i.tv/site/mg_bounce.php?mg_a_id=30824&mg_m_id=5785&language=en_GB


37. REPORTS OF THE CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY)

RESOLVED:

That decisions be recorded as shown on the Planning Application schedule attached 
as an appendix.

38. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were three members of the public present at the start of the meeting.

(The meeting started at 1pm and ended at 2.05pm)

…………………………
Chair

Meetings of the Planning Committee are webcast and can be viewed by visiting the 
webcast library at: http://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

Tudalen 4

http://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


PLANNING COMMITTEE ON 18 DECEMBER 2024

ITEM NO TOWN/
COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL

SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / 
LOCAL MEMBER 
OBSERVATIONS

RESOLUTION

FUL/000726/24

(Link to 
recording)

Holywell Town 
Council

Full application - Application 
for the adaptation of the 
existing Public House into 
four 2 bedroom self-
contained apartments 
[including one duplex unit] 
and the erection of * five new 
2 bedroom dwellings and 
associated infrastructure 
including a detached bat 
mitigation building at Talacre 
Arms, New Road, Holywell

* It was clarified that this was 
for five new 2 bedroom 
dwellings and not 3 bedroom 
dwellings stated on the front 
of the agenda.

Thomas Casson 
(Resident) spoke 
against the application.

A statement was read 
out on behalf of Peter 
Hughes-Jones (Agent) 
in support of the 
application.

Councillor Ted Palmer 
(Local Member) spoke 
on the application.

That in accordance with the officer 
recommendation, planning permission be 
granted subject to the conditions set out 
in the report and Section 106 Obligation 
to provide a financial contribution towards 
public open space of £8432, together with 
two additional conditions:

 The existing vehicular footway 
crossing, Talacre Public House, shall 
be reinstated to full height in 
accordance with details to be 
submitted to and approved by the 
County Council prior to the 
commencement of any site works.

 The name Talacre Arms to be 
incorporated into the new 
development.

FUL/000581/24

(Link to 
recording)

Caerwys Town 
Council

Full application - Conversion 
of 2no. outbuildings to form 
2no. bedroom annex 
accommodation together with 
demolition of a further 2no. 

Neil Foxall (Agent) 
spoke in support of the 
application.

Councillor Steve Copple 
(Local Member) spoke 

That in accordance with the officer 
recommendation, planning permission be 
refused for the reasons set out in the 
report.

T
udalen 5

https://flintshire.public-i.tv/site/mg_bounce.php?mg_a_id=30699&mg_m_id=5785&language=en_GB
https://flintshire.public-i.tv/site/mg_bounce.php?mg_a_id=30699&mg_m_id=5785&language=en_GB
https://flintshire.public-i.tv/site/mg_bounce.php?mg_a_id=30700&mg_m_id=5785&language=en_GB
https://flintshire.public-i.tv/site/mg_bounce.php?mg_a_id=30700&mg_m_id=5785&language=en_GB


ITEM NO TOWN/
COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL

SITE/PROPOSAL THIRD PARTY / 
LOCAL MEMBER 
OBSERVATIONS

RESOLUTION

outbuildings at Brick Kiln Isaf, 
Caerwys

in support of the 
application.

T
udalen 6



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 15TH JANUARY 2025 

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT 
AND ECONOMY)

SUBJECT: FULL APPLICATION – PROPOSED RE-
CONFIGURATION OF EXISTING RESIDENTIAL 
CARAVAN SITE TO ALLOW FOR THE SITING OF 
26 NO UNITS 

APPLICATION 
NUMBER:

COU/000183/24

APPLICANT: MR S SEDDON

SITE: LAND ADJOINING OLD QUAY HOUSE,
DOCK ROAD, CONNAHS QUAY

APPLICATION 
VALID DATE:

27/3/24

LOCAL MEMBERS: COUNCILLOR J B ATTRIDGE
COUNCILLOR D OWEN

TOWN/COMMUNITY 
COUNCIL:

CONNAH’S QUAY TOWN COUNCIL

REASON FOR 
COMMITTEE:

SCALE OF DEVELOPMENT RELATIVE TO 
DELEGATION SCHEME

SITE VISIT: NO 

1.00 SUMMARY

1.01 This full application proposes the reconfiguration of an existing 
residential caravan site at Dock Road, Connah’s Quay to allow for 
the siting of 26 units. Progression of the application has been 
impacted following receipt of initial flood risk concerns expressed by 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW). As a result, amended plans have 
been received on which further consultation has been undertaken. 
the changes subsequently being considered acceptable from a 
development management perspective.

Tudalen 7

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6.1



2.00 RECOMMENDATION: TO GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING: -

2.01 1. The development hereby approved shall be commenced
before the expiration of five years from the date of this
permission.

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans and documents:

 AMENDED Application forms date received 3/10/24.
 Site Location Plan MH-129-DR-00 date received 18/3/24.
 AMENDED Lodge Park Plan MH-129-DR-01 Rev 07 

date received 3/10/24.
 AMENDED Masterplan MH-129-DR-04 Rev 01 date 

received 29/10/24.
 AMENDED Planting Plan Sheet 1 MH-129-DR-02-Rev 

01 date received 3/10/24.
 AMENDED Planting Plan Sheet 2 MH-129-DR-03-Rev 

01 date received 3/10/24.
 AMENDED Landscape Details MH-129-DR-05-Rev 01 

date received 3/10/24.
 AMENDED Landscape Details MH-129-DR-06-Rev 01 

date received 3/10/24.
 Flood Consequences Assessment  

3. Within 3 months of the date of this permission a Flood 
Management / Emergency Evacuation Plan shall be 
submitted for the consideration and written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details unless further agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4. Notwithstanding the landscaping details as shown on plans 
MH-129-DR-02-Rev 01, MH-129-DR-03-Rev 01, MH-129-
DR-05-Rev 01 and MH-129-DR-06-Rev 01, no development 
shall commence until details of a hedgerow /fencing to 
minimise the impact of development on the Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) and Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI) has been submitted for the consideration and written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. The details as may 
subsequently be approved shall be undertaken within the first 
planting and seeding season following the commencement of 
development or such other timescale as may be approved by 
the Local Planning Authority and retained thereafter.

5. No development shall commence until a scheme of 
biodiversity net benefit incorporating lighting proposals, 
surface water management and the introduction of bat and 
bird boxes has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

Tudalen 8



the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with a timescale to be approved 
in accordance with the approved details or any agreed 
variation therefrom.

6. No surface water and/or land drainage shall be allowed to 
connect directly or indirectly with the public sewerage 
network

7. Within 3 months of the date of this permission, details of the 
means of foul drainage to serve the development shall be 
submitted for the consideration and written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details in accordance with a 
timescale as may be approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

3.00 CONSULTATIONS

3.01 Councillor J B Attridge (Local Member): No response received at 
time of preparing report.

Councillor D Owen (Local Member): Supports this application and 
believes it is needed with the current housing situation within 
Flintshire. Considers that this is indeed a very important opportunity 
for our community and the accommodation is very much needed. 

Connah’s Quay Town Council: No objections subject to 
compliance with planning policy.

Highways Development Control: No objection and do not intend 
to make a recommendation on highway grounds.

Community and Business Protection (Pollution Control): No 
adverse comments to make from a noise and amenity perspective.

Community and Business Protection (Health and Safety): 
Following the submission of an amended scheme which proposes a 
reduction in the number of caravans from that initially proposed, in 
combination with the removal of caravans from within the C2 Flood 
Zone, raise no objection subject to controls to meet caravan site 
licence requirements being secured through a management plan.

Welsh Water/Dwr Cymru: Confirm that capacity exists within the 
public sewerage network to receive the domestic foul only flows 
from the proposed development site. Recommend that any 
permission includes a condition in respect of land /surface water 
drainage to prevent discharge into the main system.

Tudalen 9



Natural Resources Wales: Welcome changes to the site layout 
following a reduction in proposed caravan numbers and their re-
siting. Recommend that the Local Planning Authority ensure that the 
potential flood risks associated with the development be minimised 
and impact on protected ecological habitats addressed including the 
installation of an acceptable means of foul drainage.

Airbus: No aerodrome safeguarding objection. 

North Wales Fire Service: Confirm that water supplies to combat a 
potential fire at the site is available at the junction of Dock Road 
/Quay Lane. Request that internal roads are constructed in 
accordance with Model Standards 2008 – Caravan Sites in Wales 
and Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960.

Public Rights of Way (PROW): Public Footpath 28 abuts the site 
but appears unaffected by the development. The path must be 
protected and free from interference from the construction.

Built Conservation Officer: Supports the proposed amended layout 
which provides for increased separation distances between the 
caravans and the former Old Quay House Public House, this 
enhancing and improving its setting.

4.00 PUBLICITY

4.01 Neighbour Notifications were sent to 34 neighbouring and nearby 
properties. The application was also publicised by way of a Press 
Notices and Site Notice displayed near the site.

No response(s) received at time of preparing report.

5.00 SITE HISTORY

5.01 No planning history

6.00 PLANNING POLICIES

6.01 Flintshire Local Development Plan 
Policy STR2 – The Location of Development 
Policy STR4 – Principles of Sustainable Development, Design and 
Placemaking.
Policy STR5 – Transport and Accessibility 
Policy STR6 – Services, Facilities, and Infrastructure 
Policy STR13 – Natural and Built Environment, Green Networks, 
and Infrastructure. 
Policy PC1 – The Relationship of Development to Settlement 
Boundaries 
Policy PC2 – General Requirements for Development 

Tudalen 10



Policy PC3 – Design 
Policy PC4 – Sustainability and Resilience of New Development 
Policy PC5 – Transport and Accessibility 
Policy PE2 – Principal Employment Areas
Policy HN2 – Density and Mix of Development 
Policy HN3 – Affordable Housing 
Policy EN6 – Sites of Biodiversity Importance 
Policy EN7 – Development Affecting Trees, Woodlands, and 
Hedgerows. 
Policy EN14 – Flood Risk
Policy EN14 – Water Resources

Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes (SPGN) 
SPGN2 – Space Around Dwellings 
SPGN3 – Landscaping 
SPGN4 – Trees and Development 
SPGN8 – Nature Conservation and Development 
SPGN11 – Parking Standards 

National Planning Policy/Guidance 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) – Edition 12
Future Wales: The Development Plan 2020-2040 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5 – Nature Conservation and Planning 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12 – Design 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 15 – Development and Flood Risk 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18 – Transport
Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960.
Model Standards 2008 – Caravan Sites in Wales
Circular 008/2018 – Planning requirement in respect of the use of 
private sewerage in new development, incorporating septic tanks 
and small sewerage treatment plants.

7.00 PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.01

7.02

Introduction / Site Description
The application site amounts to approximately 0.8 hectares in area. 
It is located to the south of the River Dee, north of the Chester – 
Llandudno railway line which runs parallel to a road that 
accommodates the North Wales Coastal Path adjacent to the sites 
southern boundary, Quay Lane to the east and open greenspace to 
the west. The site is predominantly hardstanding and currently 
contains 32 static caravans used as long-standing permanent 
residential accommodation, with other associated mobile structures 
segregated by substantial lengths of steel palisade fencing. 

There are currently two vehicular access points to the site from 
Dock Road/ Quay Lane. The main site access is located between 
the former Old Quay Public House (Grade II Listed) and the 
Heritage Centre, with a separate access serving five caravans being 

Tudalen 11



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

located to the rear (south) of the public house, between it and the 
railway line.

Proposed Development
The plans initially submitted as part of this application proposed the 
re-configuration of the existing site, to allow for an increase for the 
siting of 33 caravans for residential accommodation. Amended plans 
have however been submitted in progression of the application 
which propose a reduction in the number of caravans from 33 to 26. 
This is principally following objections initially received from Natural 
Resources Wales (NRW), given concerns that the initial proposal 
included their retention and siting within a C2 – Flood Zone. 

As a result, the site layout has been amended, and further 
consultation on the application has been undertaken. It is important 
to note that the scheme proposes the re-siting of existing caravans 
on the site with no new units proposed and involves the formation of 
a new internal road layout. A new direct access to serve seven 
caravans is also proposed to be obtained from the road that runs 
parallel to the railway line and sites southern boundary.

Main Planning Considerations 
The main planning considerations to be addressed in determination 
of this application include: 

 Principle of Development. 
 Character and Appearance 
 Impact on Setting of Listed Building (Former Old Quay Public 

House)
 Impact on Living Conditions. 
 Adequacy of Access 
 Impact on Ecology.
 Flood Risk. 
 Foul Drainage

These issues are considered in further detail below. 

Principle of Development 
The site is located within the settlement boundary of Connah’s 
Quay, which is a Tier 1 Main Service Centre as defined in the 
Flintshire Local Development Plan. It is also within a Principal 
Employment Area (PEA) at Dock Road. 

In terms of the PEA, it is noted that the application site lies at the 
western extreme of its designation. The bulk of other industrial and 
commercial development is to the east of the site along Dock Road.
By contrast in the vicinity of the application site there is a former 
public house (now a House in Multiple Occupation -HMO) and 
Heritage Centre, and several of the caravans that are immune from 

Tudalen 12



7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

enforcement action. The loss of this part of the PEA, is not 
considered to harm the remainder of the PEA designation.

Given the highly sustainable nature of Main Service Centres, policy 
STR2 permits residential development within settlement boundaries 
on windfall sites. Whilst the policy context is directed towards “bricks 
and mortar” housing development, it is accepted that residential 
park type developments comprising static caravan type 
development can in some instances meet specific housing needs, 
and there are several examples throughout the County. 

The residential use of the site at this location is well established with 
several of the caravans having been sited since 2008/10, and as a 
result being immune from enforcement action. Additional caravans 
have been on site since 2019, having been the subject of separate 
Planning and Community and Business Protection investigations, 
with a working group being established with other departments 
/bodies, recognising the specific housing circumstances of the 
occupiers, and the potential scope to facilitate overall improvements 
to the site. 

This current application has been submitted as a result, and the 
principle of a replan / reconfiguration of the existing site layout 
seeking to improve the living conditions for its occupants and visual 
appearance is therefore supported, in accordance with national and 
local planning policy, subject to the safeguarding of relevant 
development management considerations.

Character and Appearance
It is important to note that the existing site layout that has evolved at 
this location is of poor quality, with several of the caravans also 
being in poor repair that do not meet minimum separation distances 
for site licencing purposes administered by Community and 
Business Protection (Health and Safety). The site has also evolved 
with no associated soft landscaping, this compromising both the 
living conditions for its existing occupiers and contributing to its 
current overall dense and stark visual appearance.

It is considered that there is an opportunity to bring the site up to 
modern living standards to comply with both modern welfare 
legislation and improve the layout from both design and well -being 
perspectives. The amended site layout proposes a significant 
reconfiguration of the site with the re-siting of the existing caravans, 
increasing fluidity and linkages between those parts of the site which 
currently appear segregated and isolated. 

In addition, and with the removal of those units from within the C2 
Flood Zone the layout now proposes that an area of additional 
landscaping is introduced as a focal feature, together with structural 
landscaping between the units to help assimilate the development 

Tudalen 13



7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

into the site and wider surroundings. It is considered that these 
changes are welcomed and supported having regard to Policies 
PC2 and PC3 of the Flintshire Local Development Plan. These 
changes will also require a separate site licence administered by 
Community and Business Protection (Health and Safety) 

Impact on Setting of Listed Building 
The site shares a common site boundary adjacent to the main site 
entrance with the former Old Quay Public House which is Grade II 
Listed, being of special architectural and historic interest. The 
current site layout accommodates several caravans within 
approximately six metres of the boundary there being an associated 
impact on the setting of the Listed Building in visual terms, 
particularly given the extent of associated steel fencing that has 
been introduced to screen the caravans.

The amendments to the site layout propose that the closest caravan 
would be within approximately 17m of the Listed Building, this being 
accompanied by increased landscaping and removal of associated 
steel fencing to soften its impact.  Consultation on the application 
has been undertaken with the Council’s Built Conservation Officer 
who welcomes and supports the amendments to the site layout 
which improve this relationship to that which currently exists.

Impact on Living Conditions
In re-configuring the site, it is important to ensure that the living 
conditions of both the occupiers of the caravans forming part of this 
application, and of existing residential properties in proximity to the 
site are safeguarded. 

It is considered that the amended site layout will improve the living 
conditions for the occupiers of the existing development providing 
minimum separation distances of approximately six metres between 
the caravans which is a significant improvement to the situation 
which currently exists, this being supported by Community and 
Business Protection (Health and Safety)

It is also important to note that the nearest residential properties to 
the site are Leighton Court located on the southern side of the 
railway line approximately 30m from the site boundary and the 
residential accommodation that is associated with the former Old 
Quay Public House, and Riverside apartments (2a/2b) at the rear 
adjacent to the site’s eastern boundary. A combination of the 
orientation of the buildings and distances involved is considered 
acceptable to safeguard the living conditions of the occupiers of 
residential accommodation both within and outside the application 
site boundary. 

Tudalen 14



7.19 

7.20

7.21

7.22 

7.23

7.24

7.25

Adequacy of Access
The existing site is currently served by two access points as 
referenced, with a new access into the site to serve seven caravans 
in the south-western corner of the site also being proposed.

It is considered that this new access arrangement will provide for 
increased linkages within the site, allowing for fluidity for vehicular 
and pedestrian movements, and options for access to all caravans 
to be achieved irrespective of the individual access point used to 
enter the site, this being beneficial in emergency situations. 
Consultation on the details submitted has been undertaken with 
both the Councils Highways Development Control and North Wales 
Fire Service, there being no objection to the principle of 
development, subject to ensuring that adequate road widths are 
provided to serve the development, this being secured through the 
site licence requirements.  

Impact on Ecology
The application site is located partially within the Dee Estuary 
Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) an area recognised as being an important saltmarsh 
transition habitat.

It is noted and acknowledged by both Natural Resources Wales 
(NRW) and the Council’s Ecologist that there has been historical 
encroachment into this area from previous commercial activities, but 
as no caravans are proposed within this area, no designated 
features will be impacted by the proposed development.

It is however recommended by the Council Ecologist that it would be 
beneficial as part of the current proposal to minimise any potential 
future impact within this river /estuarine habitat by the introduction of 
a fence/hedge boundary, controls over lighting and surface water. 
management. These requirements can be secured by the imposition 
of a planning condition.

In addition, Planning Policy Wales 12 (PPW) has recently been 
issued by the Welsh Government, requiring development to take 
account of green infrastructure, net benefit for biodiversity, and the 
protection afforded to Sites of Special Scientific Interest and trees and 
woodlands. These are also matters referenced in LDP policies, and 
in particular policies STR13 and EN2.

The plans submitted as part of this application propose substantial 
landscaping to be undertaken to help assimilate the development into 
the siting surroundings from both visual and ecological perspectives. 
It is proposed that these enhancements be secured by condition. 
supplemented by the introduction of bat and bird boxes within the site, 
these measures considered appropriate and proportionate to the 
development proposed having regard to the above policy context.

Tudalen 15



7.26 

7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

Flood Risk
The site the subject of this application lies partially within Zone B, 
Zone C1 and C2 as defined by the Development Advice Map (DAM) 
contained in Technical Advice Note (TAN)15.- Development and 
Flood Risk. 

These zones as referenced above are defined as follows:
 B - Areas known to have been flooded in the past evidenced 

by sedimentary deposits.
 C1 - Areas of the floodplain which are developed and served 

by significant infrastructure, including flood defences.
 C2 - Areas of the floodplain without significant flood defence 

            infrastructure. 

It is noted and accepted that occupation of the site for residential 
purposes falls within the definition of “Highly Vulnerable 
Development” there being a number of caravans which are currently 
sited within the C2 flood risk area, which based on the initially 
submitted plans were proposed to be retained /sited in within this 
zone.

Paragraph 6.2 of TAN15 requires justification tests to be carried out 
for the proposed development as set out below.:
i) Its location in zone C is necessary to assist, or be part of, a local 
authority regeneration initiative or a local authority strategy required 
to sustain an existing settlement.
ii) It concurs with the aims of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and 
meets the definition of previously developed land and,
iii) The potential consequences of a flooding event for the particular 
type of development have been considered and found to be 
acceptable.

It is considered that the proposal for the reconfiguration of the site 
satisfactorily meets criteria i) and ii) above, given the site context, it 
helping to sustain the settlement of Connah’ s Quay and need for 
significant regeneration of the site. 

In addition, and following concerns expressed by Natural Resources 
Wales (NRW), the scheme has been amended proposing both a 
reduction to 26 caravans with their associated removal from within 
the C2 Flood Zone. 

There is with a reduction in the number of caravans,  no 
intensification of the existing residential use of the site from that 
which currently exists from the Local Authority’s perspective, and 
the re replan /reconfiguration, provides the opportunity to improve 
emergency evacuation procedures from the site with the introduction 
of a new internal road layout, vehicular and pedestrian access 
points and the opportunity for re-enforcement of evacuation 

Tudalen 16



7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

procedures from the site, that meet the requirements of criterion iii) 
which can be secured by condition.

Having regard to the above and whilst recognising NRW’s initial and 
subsequent concerns regarding the management of flood risk in 
accordance with TAN15, it is considered that whilst the curtilage of 
one of the caravans (Plot C-05) would be within the C2 Flood Zone, 
this is a unit which is immune from enforcement action. The 
amended plans however seek to move the caravan which comprises 
the habitable accommodation from within this designation, the 
changes proposed offering a significant betterment to the situation 
that currently exists and can be supported.

Foul Drainage
The existing development is served by five septic tanks that have 
been installed within the site over a period since 2008 but have not 
been licenced by NRW. Consultation with NRW, advises that in 
accordance with Circular 008/2018 and PPW, that as the site is 
located within a public sewered area, that connection to the main 
system should be undertaken where it is acceptable and feasible to 
do so.

As the applicant proposes retention of the septic tanks to serve the 
development and recognising that the scheme involves a re-siting of 
the caravans, it will be necessary to ensure that the existing septic 
tanks comply with the relevant discharge requirements administered 
by NRW. 

However, in the event of this not being feasible, it will be a 
necessary at that stage to require linkage into the main sewerage 
network as required by the circular and PPW advice. Both options 
can be satisfactorily secured by the imposition of a planning 
condition.

8.00 CONCLUSION
The proposed development offers the opportunity to improve the 
living conditions for the occupiers of this established residential 
caravan site, through a re-configuration of the site layout, which 
improves and addresses flood risk concerns in accordance with 
TAN15 -Development and Flood Risk over and above that which 
currently exists.

In addition, the proposal would secure significant visual 
improvements to the site and wider surroundings offering the 
opportunity to secure the introduction of significant areas of 
landscaping and improvements to the setting of the former Old Quay 
Public House which is Grade II Listed.

Tudalen 17



The proposal also offers additional and improved vehicular 
accessibility to the site including options for emergency evacuation 
in the event of flooding or fire. It also seeks to minimise the indirect 
impact of the existing development on the Special Area of 
Conservation and Site of Special Scientific Interest at this location, 
the proposal providing a package of benefits to the situation that 
currently exists at this location and is supported subject to the 
imposition of conditions as referenced in paragraph 2.00 of this 
report.

It is important to note that if the site is not capable of being 
regularised which the improvements proposed, then this creates a 
significant issue in terms of the need to find alternative 
accommodation for the existing residents, which has been weighed 
in the overall planning balance.

8.01 Other Considerations

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and considered that there would be no 
significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a 
result of the recommended decision.

The Council has acted in accordance with the Human Rights Act 
1998 including Article 8 of the Convention and in a manner which is 
necessary in a democratic society in furtherance of the legitimate 
aims of the Act and the Convention.

The Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under the Equality Act 2010.

The Council has had due regard to its duty under Section 3 of the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and considered 
that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the 
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the recommended 
decision.    

LIST OF BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Planning Application & Supporting Documents
National & Local Planning Policy
Responses to Consultation
Responses to Publicity

Contact Officer: Robert Mark Harris
Telephone: 01352 703269
Email:                         Robert.M.Harris@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 18

mailto:Robert.M.Harris@flintshire.gov.uk


Tudalen 19



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



T
E

R
R

IT
O

R
IA

L 
M

E
W

S

Q
U
AY

 L
A
N
E

Play Area
LEIGHTON COURT / CW

RT LEIGHTON

Shingle

Park

Quay

El Sub Sta

Posts

MP 188.0

ETL

ETLBusiness

CHURCH HILL

RPE AVENUE

w W
ater

Boulders and M
udPlay Area

2

11

1

Cadet Mews

380

4

to

1382

5

H
ig

h 
Tr

ee
s

3

14

G
ol

fty
n 

H
ou

se

10

B
ur

to
n 

H
ou

se

A
ge

no
ra

12
Musgraves House

O
ld Q

u
ay H

o
use

Herita
ge C

entre

La
ur

el
s

6

T
h
e 

H
o
lli

es

4

T
h
e 

G
a
bl

es

T
h
e

1

22

3

25

19

1

3

T
he

 F
irs

T
h
e 

E
lm

s

T
he

 B
ee

ch
es

View

Dee

7

9

C
ot

ta
ge

C
ou

rt
ya

rd

17

S
to

ne
ha

ve
n

Planning, Environment & Economy,
Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer:  Mr Andrew Farrow

This plan is based on Ordnance Survey Material
with the permission of the Controller of His Majesty's
Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number: 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2024.

Location Plan      Scale 1:50,000   

Map Scale:

OS Map:

Application:

1:1250

SJ 2970

COU/183/24

Application Site

Adopted Flintshire Unitary
Development Plan
Settlement Boundary

Planning Application Site

Legend

DEE ESTUARY

CHESTER - HOLYHEAD RAILW
AY

D
O

C
K

 R
O

A
D

LEIGHTON COURT

COAST ROAD          B5129

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol


	Rhaglen
	4 Cofnodion
	6.1 COU/000183/24 - C - Cais llawn - Cynnig i ad-drefnu safle carafanau preswyl presennol i ganiatáu ar gyfer lleoli 26 uned ar dir ger Old Quay House, Ffordd y Doc, Cei Connah
	Enc. 1 for COU/000183/24 - Full application - Proposed Re-configuration of existing residential caravan site to allow for the siting of 26no units at land adj. to Old Quay House. Dock Road, Connahs Quay


